
 

Historic Preservation Commission  

 
Members: 
Ms. Suzanne Wright – Chairperson 
Dr. Stephen Gibson – Secretary 
Mr. Tim Hoffman 
Mr. Larry Jackson 
Mr. Chris Myers 
Dr. Michael Garrett 
Vacant Seat 
Councilwoman Laurie Marchini 
Staff Liaison: Kathy McKenney, Historic Planner/Preservation Coordinator 
 

  
 

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

AGENDA  

Historic Preservation Commission 

Cumberland City Hall, Council Chambers 

 

DATE:    September 09, 2020 

TIME:     2:00 PM 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. Approval of Minutes from the August 12, 2020 Public Meeting 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

CERTIFICATES OF APPROPRIATENESS  

2. 3 Pershing Street – Allegany Museum - Request to Change/Amend COA842 for After the Fact 

work in the rear façade, including an HVAC enclosure, replacement of stairs and accessible ramp, 

as well as the replacement of the soffit on the rear entrance addition - Mike Fetchero, applicant 

3. 23 Washington Street – Request to Change/Amend COA20-000003 to modify the existing 

sidewalk – Gorman Getty III, applicant 

4. 27 North Centre Street – COA20-000004 - Request to replace window units, Sandi Saville, 

applicant. 

TAX INCENTIVE APPLICATION REVIEW 

5. 107-109 Baltimore Street – Part 1 Review – Steve Chaney, Town Center Development   Group, 

LLC 

OTHER BUSINESS 

6. Staff/Chairperson Updates 

7. Review of  Proposed Revisions to the Rules of Procedure for the Purpose of Incorporating Virtual 

Meetings, Providing for Digital Signatures for Approved Documents, and for Revising the 

Motion Template 



8. Administrative Approvals Report - HPC Staff Reviewed and Approved a Limited Scope of Work 

for 23 Washington Street (COA20-000003) 

ADJOURNMENT  

 
If you are unable to attend this meeting, please contact the Department of Community Development at  

(301) 759-6431 or (301) 759-6442. 

Applicants or their appointed representatives must be present at the meeting for a review to take place. Please 

remember to turn off or silence all electronic devices prior to entering the meeting. 



File Attachments for Item:

 Approval of Minutes from the August 12, 2020 Public Meeting



 

 

MINUTES 

HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 

September 9, 2020 

Virtual Zoom Meeting 

 

 The Cumberland Historic Preservation Commission held its regular meeting 

on Wednesday, August 12, 2020 at 4:00 p.m., via a virtual zoom meeting.  Members 

present were Chairperson, Dr. Stephen Gibson, Mr. Larry Jackson, Dr. Michael T. 

Garrett, Mr. Chris Myers, Ms. Suzanne Wright, and Councilwoman Lauri Marchini. 

 Others in attendance were Kathy McKenney, Historic Planner/Preservation 

Coordinator, Debbie Helmstetter, Code Technician, Mr. Wes Bender, Ms. Lori 

Dudiak, and Mrs. Jane Belt.  

  Chairperson, Dr. Stephen Gibson, called the meeting to order.  He read the 

following statement into the record: “The Cumberland Historic Preservation 

Commission exists pursuant to Section 11 of the City of Cumberland Municipal 

Zoning Ordinance.  Members are appointed by the Mayor and City Council and shall 

possess a demonstrated special knowledge or professional or academic training in 

such fields as history, architecture, architectural history, planning, archeology, 

anthropology, curation, conservation, landscape architecture, historic preservation, 

urban design or related disciplines.  The Commission strives to enhance quality of 

life by safeguarding the historical and cultural heritage of Cumberland.  

Preservation is shown to strengthen the local economy, stabilize and improve 

property values, and foster civic beauty.  The Cumberland Historic Preservation 

Commission operates pursuant to State of Maryland 1977 Open Meetings Act and 

therefore no pending applications shall be discussed between or amongst 

Commissioners outside the public hearing to determine the disposition of the 

application.” 

  Chairperson Dr. Stephen Gibson introduced the Commission members 

present and staff.   

  

 



2 
 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1.  Minutes for July 8, 2020 were approved as written.  Mr. Chris 
Myers made the motion to approve the minutes as read and 
Councilwoman Lauri Marchini second the motion; all members were in 
favor, motion approved. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

 Mrs. Jane Belt, Chairwoman of the Board of Directors of Humpty Dumpty 

Learning Center.  Mrs. Belt explained that they are in the process of opening two 

classrooms grades Kindergarten and first grade then a second classroom for the 2-

5 grades students who will need care while their parents are working this fall due 

to COVID19 conditions.  She indicated that this project came together at the last 

minute so she was unable to request a permit review prior to the Historic 

Preservation Commission’s meeting. She indicated a need to have a safe area 

outside for a play area.  The right side of the former Centre Street United 

Methodist Church is now being renovated and she stated a need to move the 

playground to the left side of the building and now need to fence in the play area 

for the children.  

 Mrs. Belt asked for the permission of the Historic Preservation Commission 

and for Kathy McKenney’s guidance to install a temporary fence, similar to the 

black metal fence is on the old playground area.  Ms. McKenney has the product 

specifications that were used at American Rent All and, the contractor Rick Burley 

will put up a temporary fence until the fence can be ordered and installed.  Opening 

date will be this Monday.  Mr. Belt said their classrooms will be full.  

 Chris Myers made the motion to approve this request to install a 
temporary fence and to provide staff authorization to review the permanent 
fence. Dr. Michael Garrett seconded the motion; all members were in favor.    

  

CERTIFICATES OF APPROPRIATENESS 

1. COA 813 – Wes Bender, applicant for the Corner Tavern and Café, 

requested to remove the existing side door and storm door on the 

Hanover Street side and to then install a new Tubelite-brand door from 

the Standard Narrow Stile product line.  The size of the door will match 

the existing opening.  The aluminum door will feature two glass lights and 



3 
 

the finish will be clear anodized.  An additionally one-year extension to 

the expiration date of the original Certificate of Appropriateness was 

requested.   

 

A motion was made by Ms. Suzanne Wright to approve COA 813 
pursuant to approval by the Maryland Historical Trust for the 
amendment application for the Small Commercial Tax Credit 
application. Seconded by Mr. Larry Jackson, all members were in 
favor; motion approved. 
     

2. COA20-000002, Applicant Lori Dudiak, Queen City Bloom Box, 10 South 

Mechanic Street, requested to repaint the storefront, black and white, 

and add a new wood sign.  Her proposal is to paint previously painted 

surfaces on the façade.  The roofing material on the roof above the 

storefront is to be painted black, the storefront cornice and brackets 

are to be painted white; the existing painted brick surfaces are to be 

painted white; the entryways on each side as well as the planters are to 

be painted black.  The original brownstone will not be painted and the 

existing light fixtures will be retained and repainted.  

     The new sign will be constructed from 16-gauge Black Steel and will be 

painted a bronze color and then will be clear coated and sealed. The 

applicant confirmed that the current lighting will be reused. 

     Mr. Larry Jackson made the motion to approve COA20-000002    
     pursuant to guidelines 13, 14, 46, 47, 49 and 54.   Mr. Chris Myers 
    seconded the motion; all members were in favor, motion approved. 

 

3.  COA 842, Request to Change/Amend to COA 842, 3 Pershing Street, 

The applicant, Mike Fetchero was not present, so the request to review 

change/amend COA 842 was moved to the September agenda.   

 

4.  COA20-000001, applicant Larry Jackson and Steve Chaney of Town 

Center Development Group, LLC, 107-109 Baltimore Street, requested oto 

renovate 107- 109 Baltimore Street the former Morton’s Jewelry Store. 

Exterior improvements are to include: the “after the fact” removal of 

the wood-substitute shingles on the façade of the first floor along with 

the removal of the projecting sign on the second floor and the sign board 

above the storefront.  The rooftop cornice is to be repaired and 



4 
 

repainted.  The existing upper story windows and window hoods are to be 

repaired and repainted. The original brick façade is to be cleaned and 

repainted.  The remaining parts of the flush mounted sign structure 

above the storefront are to be repaired and the surface behind the sign 

structure is to be repainted.  The installation of a future hanging sign 

above the storefront, indicated on the submitted specifications, should 

be installed using the mortar joints, instead of using the brick surface.  

The transom window above the entrance on the front façade that leads 

to the upper floors is to be re-exposed, repaired and repainted.  The 

existing storefront entrance door is to be retained along with the 

recessed entrance windows.  The masonry surfaces are to be painted 

consistent with the submitted color key.   

      For the rear elevation on Dexter Place, the rubber membrane and metal    

      rood will be replaced with a new rubber roof.  The gutters and            

      downspouts are to be replaced.  The porch roof will be replaced with a  

      rubber membrane roof.   

     The abandoned furnace vent pipe is to be removed along with other utility    

      equipment. The concrete block, stairs and brick surfaces are to be          

      painted. A new railing is to be installed.  The brick on the third floor is be 

     repointed.  

     Ms. Suzanne Wright made the motion to approve COA20-000001 as   

     submitted with the following changes: conditions of the sign board above    

    the storefront is to be restored without backlighting.  Councilwoman   

    Laurie Marchini seconded the motion pursuant to guidelines: 1, 2, 3, 8, 13,   

    14, 15, 20, 22, 29, 33, 37, 39, 40, 41, 42, 45, 46, 47, 49, 50, and 55.  Vote   

    was 4-0 for and with Larry Jackson abstained from the vote since he is      

    one of the owners as a member of Town Center Development Group, LLC.      

 

OTHER BUSINESS/STAFF UPDATES 

1. There were no administrative approvals in July. 

2. As a follow up from last meeting: The Non-Capitol Grant for the Carver 

School requires at least two letters of support to be submitted with the 

application.  Ms. McKenney asked if the members of the Historic 

Preservation Commission would consider providing one.  Ms. Suzanne 

Wright made a motion for Kathy to draft a letter up for Chairman Dr. 

Steven Gibson to sign.  Mr. Jackson seconded the motion. All members 



5 
 

were in favor; motion approved. 

3. Ms. McKenney advised the members of the HPC that the new digital 

permit software platform incorporates digital signatures within the 

system related to reviews and approvals. In order to make this updated 

procedure, she recommended that the Rules of Procedure be updated to 

accommodate this provision and a new process could be incorporated to 

obtain new digital signatures each year when new officers are elected. Ms. 

McKenney said she will update the Rules of Procedure in order to present 

them for consideration at the September meeting.   

   An audio of the meeting is available upon request. 

 

ADJOURMENT 

  Dr. Michael Garrett made the motion to adjourn and Mr. Larry Jackson 

seconded the motion.  All members were in favor; motion approved. 

 

       Respectfully, 

              

        ___________________________________ 

       Mr. Tim Hoffman, Secretary 

       September 9, 2020 



File Attachments for Item:

2. 3 Pershing Street – Allegany Museum - Request to Change/Amend COA842 for After the Fact work in

the rear façade, including an HVAC enclosure, replacement of stairs and accessible ramp, as well as the 

replacement of the soffit on the rear entrance addition - Mike Fetchero, applicant



 

  
 
 

 
EXISTING CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS  
REQUEST FOR CHANGE/AMENDMENT 
 

 
 
Certificate of Appropriateness #: 842 (Second Change/Amendment Request) 
 
Property Owner: Western Maryland Station Center Inc. 
 
Original Approval Date: October 15, 2018 
 
Project Address: 3 Pershing Street 
 
Property Number:  04044517 
 
Change/Amendment Review Date: August 12, 2020 
 
 
 
The request for a change/amendment to the original review includes the following scope of work:  After the Fact 
approval of the construction of a wooden enclosure and new pad around the HVAC unit, reconstruction of the exterior 
stairs, reconstruction of the accessible ramp, and replacement of the soffit on the rear addition using Hardie Reveal 
cement board. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The request was:      DENIED 
       APPROVED AS SUBMITTED 

 APPROVED, SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING 
CONDITIONS 

 
APPROVED with the following conditions:       
 
 
 
Signed: 
 
 
____________________________________________ ________________________________________ 
HPC Chair HPC Secretary 
 
 
NOTE: Please note that the approval listed above only constitutes the approval of the Historic Preservation 
Commission.  You must still ensure that all other permits associated with this project, if required, have been 
applied for and approved by the Building and Zoning Officer.   



 
 
 

3 Pershing Street “Before” Photos 
 
 

 
 
 





 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3 Pershing Street 
Project Underway 

July 2020 











 
 



 
 

Documents Provided by Project Architect to the Maryland Historical Trust for 
Preservation Easement Review 

 
 

 
 
 



 

 



 

 



 



 



 



 



 Additional Project Information Provided by Applicant 

 



 



 





 
 

Certificate of Appropriateness Application 

Presentation of Information 

By Kathy McKenney 

 

COA#842 (Request for a Second Change/Amendment 

Business Name Allegany Museum 

Address 3 Pershing Street 

Project Contact Mike Fetchero 

 

 

Project Summary 

An application for a Certificate of Appropriateness was approved on October 15, 2018 
(COA#842) for the After the Fact review of a new sign that was installed on the parapet at the 
rooftop. Unfortunately, the property owners’ engineer was provided incorrect information 
upon inquiring with Department of Community Development staff as to whether permits would 
be required for this project.  Although building permits were not required, information was not 
provided about the need for a Certificate of Appropriateness review.  
 
The original request for a Change/Amendment to the original COA was reviewed on December 
12, 2018 for the addition of a sign panel for the at-grade freestanding sign. 
 
An additional amended review has now been requested to approve additional work that has 
already been completed on or around the rear addition to the building which is visible from the 
public rights of way of South Mechanic Street and Harrison Street.  The applicant’s architect has 
provided copies of documents that were submitted to the Maryland Historical Trust for their 
review since they hold a perpetual preservation easement on the building.  These documents, 
however, appear to differ from the completed design that currently exists.  According to the 
applicant, the HVAC equipment was originally to be installed on the rooftop but instead needed 
to be placed at ground-level. 
 

 

The rear addition was extensively altered in 1997 and included in COA#204. 

 

 

The sections of the Preservation Guidelines that pertain to this application are  Guideline 3: 

Restore Significant Historic Features (Chapter 5 Page 678 – cited in reference to the work 

related to the later rear addition); Guideline 6: Safety Codes and Handicap Access (Chapter 5 

page 69); Guideline 55: Utility Equipment (Chapter 5 Page 108): Guideline 60: Ground-Mounted 

Equipment (Chapter 5 Page 112) 

 
 



File Attachments for Item:

3. 23 Washington Street – Request to Change/Amend COA20-000003 to modify the existing sidewalk – 

Gorman Getty III, applicant















File Attachments for Item:

4. 27 North Centre Street – COA20-000004 - Request to replace window units, Sandi Saville, applicant.



















 

 

Certificate of Appropriateness Application 

Presentation of Information 

By Kathy McKenney 

 

COA# COA20-000004 

Address: 27 North Centre Street 

Project Contact: Sandra Saville 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Project Summary The applicant has proposed to install new replacement windows on the upper story of 

the front façade.  The structure is considered a contributing structure to the Canal Place Preservation 

District, according to the 2012 updated inventory from Paula Reed and Associates. Although some 

records show the property could date as far back as circa 1900, substantial alterations took place on the 

façade prior to the designation of the Canal Place Preservation District as a locally zoned historic district 

in the mid-1990s. 

 

The proposed replacement windows are manufactured by Thermal Weld.  A copy of the product 

information has been included with the application packet.  The windows will be double hung vinyl, 

bronze in color.  The applicant has not proposed to alter the sizes of the window openings.  

 

 

 

 

The section of the Preservation Guidelines that pertain to this application is Guideline 23: 

Replacement Windows (Chapter 5 Page 82) 

 



File Attachments for Item:

5. 107-109 Baltimore Street – Part 1 Review – Steve Chaney, Town Center Development   Group, LLC



 
 

 



 
 

 
 

 

 
CERTIFICATE OF APPROPRIATENESS DECISION 

 
 
August 19, 2020 
 
 

 Approved    Certificate of Appropriateness # 20-000001 
  Denied     Agenda Item 5 
  Conditional    Project Address: 107 Baltimore Street 

      Meeting Date: August 12, 2020 
      Property Number:  22005855 
 
Town Center Development Group LLC 
Attn: Mr. Larry Jackson 
841 Windsor Road 
Cumberland, MD 21502 
 
Dear Mr. Jackson: 
 
The Historic Preservation Commission of the City of Cumberland on the above date, considered the application for construction at the 
above address as follows: 
 
Exterior improvements are to include:  the “after the fact” removal of the wood-substitute shingles on the façade of the first floor along 
with the removal of the projecting sing on the second floor and the sign board above the storefront.  The rooftop cornice is to repaired 
and repainted.   
 

The existing upper story windows and window hoods are to be repaired and repainted. 

 

The original brick façade is to be cleaned and repainted, The cleaning of the exterior surfaces are to be undertaken consistent with  

Preservation Brief #1: Assessing Cleaning and Water-Repellent Treatments for Historic Masonry Buildings 

https://www.nps.gov/tps/how-to-preserve/briefs/1-cleaning-water-repellent.htm  and Preservation Brief  #6: Dangers of Abrasive 

Cleaning to Historic Buildings https://www.nps.gov/tps/how-to-preserve/briefs/6-dangers-abrasive-cleaning.htm 

 

The remaining parts of the flush mounted sign structure above the storefront are to be repaired and the surface behind the sign 

structure is to be repainted. There is also a reference The installation of a future hanging sign above the storefront, indicated on the 

submitted specifications, should be installed using the mortar joints, instead of using the brick surface.  

 

The transom window above the entrance door on the front façade that leads to stairs to the upper floors is to be re-exposed, repaired 

and repainted.  A new ¾ lite door is to be installed in the door opening consistent with the submitted product specifications.   

 

The existing storefront entrance door is to be retained along with the recessed entrance windows. The masonry surfaces are to be 

painted consistent with the submitted color key. 

 

For the rear elevation on Dexter Place, the rubber membrane and metal roof will  be replaced with a new rubber roof.  The gutters and 

downspouts are to be replaced.  The porch roof, currently constructed of metal, is to be replaced with a rubber membrane roof.   

 

The abandoned furnace vent pipe is to be removed along with other abandoned utility equipment.  The concrete block and stairs, along 

with the brick surfaces on the second floor are to be painted. A new railing is to be installed. Rotten wood in the porch ceiling is to be 

replaced The brick on the third floor is to be repointed.  Consistent with comments by the Maryland Historical Trust, the mortar mix used 

for the repointing must be consistent with the historic mortar.  Once the remaining specifications for the rear deck have been finalized, 

they can be submitted for review as a Change/Amendment request to this Certificate of Appropriateness if these specifications are 

available within two years from the date of the application of the original Certificate of Appropriateness.   

 

 
 

https://www.nps.gov/tps/how-to-preserve/briefs/1-cleaning-water-repellent.htm
https://www.nps.gov/tps/how-to-preserve/briefs/6-dangers-abrasive-cleaning.htm


The application was:     DENIED 
       APPROVED AS SUBMITTED 

 APPROVED, SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING CONDITIONS 
 

APPROVED with the following conditions: the sign board above the storefront is to be restored without backlighting. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
Kathy McKenney 
Community Development Programs Manager 
 
Cc: Planning and Zoning 
      COA File 
 
NOTE: Please note that the approval listed above only constitutes the approval of the Historic Preservation Commission.  You 
must still ensure that all other permits associated with this project, if required, have been applied for and approved by the 
Building and Zoning Officer.   
EXPIRATION OF CERTIFICATES OF APPROPRIATENESS: This application hereby expires six months following the file date if 
no action is taken to start specified work.  Also, the application will expire six months following the file date if the applicant 
fails to provide additional information as requested by the HPC or its staff in order for the Commission to render a decision. 



PDF Created with deskPDF PDF Writer - Trial :: http://www.docudesk.com

http://www.docudesk.com




PDF Created with deskPDF PDF Writer - Trial :: http://www.docudesk.com

http://www.docudesk.com


PDF Created with deskPDF PDF Writer - Trial :: http://www.docudesk.com

http://www.docudesk.com


PDF Created with deskPDF PDF Writer - Trial :: http://www.docudesk.com

http://www.docudesk.com


PDF Created with deskPDF PDF Writer - Trial :: http://www.docudesk.com

http://www.docudesk.com


PDF Created with deskPDF PDF Writer - Trial :: http://www.docudesk.com

http://www.docudesk.com


SUMMARIZED DESCRIPTION OF THE PROJECT AT 107 BALTIMORE ST. 
 
The project located at 107 Baltimore Street in the heart of historic downtown 
Cumberland, (commonly known as the Morton’s Jewelry Building), will entail the 
complete renovation and restoration of this early 20th century three story jewel. This 
project is an essential part of helping in creating additional vibrancy along historic 
Baltimore Street. The building is in dire need of improvements inside and out as it's a bit 
of a neglected eyesore downtown but a true small diamond in the rough. 
 
 
Existing condition summary:  
 
The existing building consists of a small rectangular shaped three story brick historic 
building with original double hung windows and exterior trim on the upper floors of the 
front façade, including the original wood cornice. The original first floor front facade 
does not exist.  An attempt to "modernize" its entry consists of vinyl/resin imitation wood 
shake siding and a stepped back storefront showcase window system.  The building 
has a partial crawl space and the original stairway system exists from first floor to 
second floor and on up to the third floor.  The building has been expanded in the past 
with what appears to be perhaps two rear additions at some point.  A rear covered 
porch exists on the second floor and is also in poor condition.   
 
 
 
 
Roof System: 
 
The existing gable and sloped metal roof system is in good to poor condition including 
the roof flashing, parapets, drainage, and roof top systems.  The existing rear covered 
porch roof is failing and is in dire need of repair.  Noticeable roof leaks and interior 
exterior wall moisture along with some ceiling damage exists on the upper two floors.  
Immediate roof and roof flashing repair work is necessary to save, properly protect and 
preserve this historic building.  Additional new roof work including installing new 
plumbing stacks and vent penetrations through the existing roof and their associated 
boots and flashing will be required with the upper floor apartment systems. 
 
 
Structural: 
 
The existing building structure consists of load bearing masonry face brick double/triple 
width exterior walls with plaster interior coating.  The primary structural system consists 
of wood floor joists, wood stud/lathe and plaster walls, wood trusses and wood decking 
including a partial crawl space.   Interior masonry walls exist due to the additions to the 
rear of the building.  However, they appear to be in good condition.  The existing 
integrity of the systems appear to be in good working order.   No new work is 



anticipated on any floor or area other than minor work as may be required for any 
reconfiguration for the second floor apartment and third floor apartment unit. 
 
 
Windows, Doors and Exterior Facades: 
 
The existing upper story double hung windows, doors, brick facades and exterior 
systems and conditions are in good to poor condition. Some original window openings 
have been bricked in on the west side and rear of the building.   
 
Electrical: 
 
The existing electrical service, systems and equipment - in general - are in working 
order but appear to be the original system from when the building was initially built.  No 
new work is proposed to the systems or on first floor.  New service feed, wiring, 
electrical panels, fixtures and equipment will be installed for the second floor apartment 
and the third floor apartment unit.  Including new power outlets, meters, lighting and 
switches as required and per building code. 
 
 
Fire, Health & Safety, Code Compliance: 
 
This Project will involve installing a fully automatic NFPA regulated sprinkler system and 
controls throughout the entire building as required by building codes for a mixed use 
building including residential occupancy on the second and third floor. Emergency and 
exit lights on first floor are dated and need to be replaced.  New ones will be installed as 
required on second and third floor for the apartments as well as hard -wired smoke 
detectors and alarm systems as required by code.  
 
Building Review Summary: 
 
The existing historic building is a quaint yet uniquely configured residential/light 
commercial scale building in the heart of downtown.  Its general 'bones' are fairly good 
but the building is "tired" and is in need of attention before it is too late and becomes too 
costly to repair and restore.  The upper two floors have noticeably been left neglected.  
It appears no real or major improvements or maintenance have occurred in many, many 
decades - if at all.   The upper two floors are totally underutilized and are in poor 
condition and in need of attention.   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



DETAILED PLANS REGARDING EXTERIOR 
 
Architectural feature: Building facade 1st floor 
Existing feature and its condition: Store front window most likely installed in the pre-
war II era, not original. Other areas around covered in shingles in about 1980. Generally 
rundown condition.  Original side door to steps covered over. Most original façade 
features completely destroyed. 
Work and impact on existing feature: Retain existing storefront glass and remove 
shingles. Will retain and re-use existing wooden door. Restore covered transom window 
that still exists above the side stairwell entrance. Install missing door (its plywood now). 
Paint existing brick to match the rest of the painted brick they will be re-painted in a 
historic color palette. Existing horizontal sign to remain. 
 
 
Architectural feature: Building facade 2nd and 3rd floors 
Existing feature and its condition: Original Hard pressed red brick and mortar with 
carved wood accents and detail over windows and cornice, in good condition.  1950’s 
metal sign frame in middle of façade. No impact except to preserve original features. 
Work and impact on existing feature:Scrape, prime and paint and repair any wooden 
decorative pieces as needed. Repaint brick. Façade in good shape. 
 
 
 
Architectural feature: Facade cornice - front 
Existing feature and its condition: Original wooden façade still in place. Good 
condition. 
Work and impact on existing feature: Scrape, prime and paint and repair any 
sections as needed 
 
 
 
Architectural feature: Facade windows - 2nd floor/3rd floor 
Existing feature and its condition: Original two over two double hung windows with 
single pane glass.  Wood above windows in good condition.  All glass is in good shape 
but missing glazing.  Wood frames and sashes in fair condition. 
Work and impact on existing feature: All windows to be caulked, re-glazed and rebuilt 
as needed to match original condition.  Replace missing wood sills as required.  
Replace missing wood dentals to match existing dentals.  Scrape, prime and paint all 
wood windows and transoms with a historic color palette.  Scrape and clean glass. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Architectural feature: Sloped shed roof - 3rd floor – not in view shed 
Existing feature and its condition: Rubber membrane shed roof with metal roof 
panels on top. Roof and flashing in poor condition.  Missing lap sealant at seams.  
Coping is cracking in some areas.  Metal gutter and downspout in poor condition.  
Leaking and damaged areas.   
Work and impact on existing feature: Install new rubber roof. Seal all rubber lap 
seams per manufacturer recommendation.  Attach and reseal flashing as required.  
Replace coping as required.  Replace gutter and down spout.    New roof will preserve 
building. 
 
 
Architectural feature: Sloped shed roof - rear of 2nd floor – not in view shed 
Existing feature and its condition: Metal roof and flashing with metal gutter and 
downspout in poor condition and leaking at perimeter areas. 
Work and impact on existing feature: Replace roof and flashing with rubber 
membrane roof.  Replace metal gutter and downspout.  New roof will protect building. 
 
 
Architectural feature: Flat roof – porch roof 
Existing feature and its condition: rubber membrane roof over plywood. System is 
completely failing and in horrible condition. 
Describe work and impact on existing feature: new roof with new sub-roof installed 
and new membrane roof installed over that. 
 
 
Architectural feature: Rear facade - 1st floor 
Existing feature and its condition:  Concrete block. Two basement type windows. 
Metal stairs leading from 2nd floor porch.  All in very poor condition. 
Work and impact on existing feature: remove abandoned furnace vent pipe and other 
abandoned pipes. Scrape and repaint metal steps. Paint concrete block. 
 
 
 
Architectural feature: Rear facade -2nd floor, 3rd floor 
Describe the existing feature and its condition:  2nd floor: 1960’s Original brick wall 
with attached porch over first floor concrete roof. In very poor condition. .Most of the 
porch railing is missing. What is left is probably not original, but installed when the first 
floor bump out edition was completed. Ceiling of porch consists of exposed structure 
beams Roof above consists of deteriorated plywood. 3rd floor: unpainted original brick. 
Work and impact on existing feature: 2nd floor: re-paint brick to preserve. Add plain 
safety railing (will NOT put decorative railing in to avoid any confusion that it would be 
original). Replace rotted wood in the ceiling of the porch when fixing the porch roof 
leaving original exposed beams.  3rd floor: re-point brink as needed. No change. 
 
 



PDF Created with deskPDF PDF Writer - Trial :: http://www.docudesk.com

http://www.docudesk.com


PDF Created with deskPDF PDF Writer - Trial :: http://www.docudesk.com

http://www.docudesk.com


1 
 

 

 

 



2 
 

 

 



3 
 

 

  



4 
 

 

2020 



5 
 

 

  City of Cumberland File Photo  



6 
 

 

 

 

Rear Façade (Source – Google Earth Maps 

 



7 
 

 

 



8 
 

 

 



9 
 

 

 



10 
 

 

 



11 
 

 

 



12 
 

 

 



13 
 

 

 



14 
 

 

 



15 
 

 

 



16 
 

 

 



17 
 

 

 



18 
 

 

 



19 
 

 

 



20 
 

 

 



21 
 

 

 



22 
 

 

 



23 
 

 

 



24 
 

 

 



25 
 

 

 



26 
 

 

 



27 
 

 

 



28 
 

 

 



29 
 

 

 



30 
 

 

 



31 
 

 

 



32 
 

 

 



33 
 

 

 



34 
 

 

 



35 
 

 

 



36 
 

 

 



37 
 

 

 



38 
 

 

 



39 
 

 

 



40 
 

 

 



41 
 

 

 



42 
 

 

 



43 
 

 

 



44 
 

 

 



45 
 

 

 



46 
 

 

 

Certificate of Appropriateness Application 

Presentation of Information 

By Kathy McKenney 

 

COA# 20-000001 

Business Name Town Center Development Group LLC 

Address 107 Baltimore Street 

Project Contact Larry Jackson 

 

 

Project Summary The applicant, who is also a member of the Historic Preservation Commission, has 

submitted an application for an extensive rehabilitation of the front and rear facades of this structure, 

which is a contributing structure to the Canal Place Preservation District.  According to the updated 2012 

district inventory, the original structure was constructed c. 1840 and was added onto c.1880.  The 

applicant has provided a number of photographs related to the interior floorplan with corresponding 

photos, however this should be taken for informational purposes only since the interior work is not 

subject to review by the Historic Preservation Commission.  Additionally, the applicant has provided 

copies of documents submitted to the Maryland Historical Trust and National Park Service related to 

applications for State of Maryland and Federal tax incentives for historic structures. There are two pages 

of conditions that have been provided by the Maryland Historic Trust related to the tax credit review 

and these can be found on pages 35-36 of this packet.  Many of these comments require additional 

specifications to be submitted for their review.   

 

The applicant had submitted a previous Certificate of Appropriateness application in 2017 (COA#815), 

however it expired and was not reviewed since it was incomplete.  I had submitted a letter to the 

applicant in November 2017 requesting the following specifications in order to complete the 

application: 

• What product/method is planned for the cleaning of the brick? 

• What is the method for removing the wood shakes from the storefront? 

• Will the existing showcase windows be retained with the new storefront panels to be built 
around them or will they be removed? 

• Could you provide product specifications for the doors and storefont  

• What colors have been selected for the paint scheme? 

• What are the specifications for the sign board (materials, size, lighting) 

• What material will the new storefront cornice be constructed of? 
 



47 
 

This information was never received so, in accordance with the terms for the Certificate of 

Appropriateness applications, COA#851 expired six months after the application date since it was never 

completed. 

 

A new application for a Certificate of Appropriateness was submitted by the applicant on August 5, 

2020.  When it was submitted, it became apparent that significant work, similar to the scope of work 

presented in 2017, had been recently completed and which was completed without approval by the 

Historic Preservation Commission or its staff.  Upon realizing this, I contacted the applicant.  He replied 

that the wood shakes had been removed because “They started to fall of the Bldg and were removed for 

safety sake knowing they were not long for the world”.  There was no explanation about the removal of 

the two signs. 

 

In terms of the scope of work submitted with this current Certificate of Appropriateness application, the 

front façade elevation can be found on page 27.  As shown on this elevation, the rooftop cornice is to 

repaired and repainted.   

 

The existing upper story windows and window hoods are to be repaired and repainted. 

 

The original brick façade is to be cleaned and repainted, however there are not specifications included 

as to the method in which the brick is to be cleaned.  Guideline 1 in the Preservation Guidelines points 

to the National Park Service Preservation Briefs for more technical assistance.  This can be found in 

Preservation Brief #1: Assessing Cleaning and Water-Repellent Treatments for Historic Masonry 

Buildings https://www.nps.gov/tps/how-to-preserve/briefs/1-cleaning-water-repellent.htm  and 

Preservation Brief  #6: Dangers of Abrasive Cleaning to Historic Buildings https://www.nps.gov/tps/how-

to-preserve/briefs/6-dangers-abrasive-cleaning.htm 

 

Although a variety of surfaces are proposed to be repainted, the submitted paint palette, shown on 

page 18 of this packet, does not contain a corresponding color key. 

 

The remaining parts of the flush mounted sign structure above the storefront are to be repaired. There 

do not appear to be any specifications as to the process for doing so, however.  The surface behind the 

sign structure is to be repainted. There is also a reference to the installation of a hanging sign above the 

right-hand side of the storefront, however there are not any specifications included, such as the size, 

material, and description of this sign.   

 

The transom window above the entrance door on the front façade that leads to stairs to the upper 

floors is to be re-exposed, repaired and repainted.  A new ¾ lite door is to be installed in the door 

opening (which had also been covered by the wood shake siding for many decades), however, there has 

been no product specifications provided for it.   

 

The existing storefront entrance door appears to be retained in this project.  The recessed entrance 

windows will be retained and the masonry surfaces are to be painted. 

 

https://www.nps.gov/tps/how-to-preserve/briefs/1-cleaning-water-repellent.htm
https://www.nps.gov/tps/how-to-preserve/briefs/6-dangers-abrasive-cleaning.htm
https://www.nps.gov/tps/how-to-preserve/briefs/6-dangers-abrasive-cleaning.htm


48 
 

The application provides a rear elevation.  This façade is visible and accessible from the public right of 

way on Dexter Place.  The elevation drawing does not provide details regarding the undertaking on this 

façade, however the submitted narratives provide some information. The rubber membrane and metal 

roof is to be replaced with a new rubber roof.  The gutters and downspouts are to be replaced.  The 

porch roof, currently constructed of metal, is to be replaced with a rubber membrane roof.   

 

The abandoned furnace vent pipe is to be removed along with other abandoned utility equipment.  The 

concrete block and stairs are to be painted. The second-floor brick is to be repainted.  A new railing is to 

be installed (specifications not provided).  Rotten wood in the porch ceiling is to be replaced (although 

the proposed replacement material specifications have not been provided. There is a reference to 

leaving the original beams exposed, however).  The brick on the third floor is to be repointed.  

Consistent with comments by the Maryland Historical Trust, the mortar mix used for the repointing 

must be consistent with the historic mortar.  Although a new deck appears on the rear elevation 

drawings above the second-floor porch roof, there does not seem to be any specifications provided 

regarding that new feature.   

 

There also appears to be a new set of stairs proposed for the rear elevation however those 

specifications have not been provided.  

 

 

 

 

 

The sections of the Preservation Guidelines that pertain to this application are Guideline 1: Preserve 

Significant Historic Features (Chapter 5 Page 65); Guideline2: Repair Before Replace (Chapter 5 Page 

66); Guideline 3: Restore Significant Historic Features (Chapter 5 Page 67); Guideline 8: Repointing 

Historic Masonry (Chapter 5 Page 70); Guideline 13: General Painting Approaches (Chapter 5 Page 74); 

Guideline 14: Painting Masonry  and Determining a Color Scheme (Chapter 5 Page 74-75); Guideline 

15: Roofing Material (Chapter 5 Page 77); Guideline 20: Gutters and Downspouts (Chapter 5 Page 80); 

Guideline 22: Retain Historic Windows (Chapter 5 Page 82); Guideline 29: Replacement Doors (Chapter 

5 Page 86); Guideline 33: Restore Historic Porch Features (Chapter 5 Page 89); Guideline 37: 

Commercial Building Ornamentation (Chapter 5 Page 93); Guideline 39: Storefront Entrances (Chapter 

5 Page 94); Guideline 40: Storefront Windows (Chapter 5 Page 95); Guideline 41: Upper Story 

Windows (Chapter 5 Page 96); Guideline 42: Historic Storefront Alterations (Chapter 5 Page 97); 

Guideline 45: Maintain and Restore Historic Signs (Chapter 5 Page 102);  Guideline 46: Sign Placement; 

Guideline 47: Sign Size (Chapter 5, Pages 102-103); Guideline 49: New Sign Materials (Chapter 5 Page 

104); Guideline 50: Existing Non-Historic Signs (Chapter 5 Page 104); Guideline 55: Utility Equipment 

(Chapter 5 Page 108) 

 

  



49 
 

 



50 
 

 

 



File Attachments for Item:

7. Review of  Proposed Revisions to the Rules of Procedure for the Purpose of Incorporating Virtual 

Meetings, Providing for Digital Signatures for Approved Documents, and for Revising the Motion 

Template



Revised 9/6/198/28/20 1 

CITY OF CUMBERLAND HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 

BYLAWS AND RULES OF PROCEDURE 

CITY OF CUMBERLAND 

 

 

FOREWORD 

 

These rules of procedure were created to assist the Commission, staff, and other City 

agencies in the expedient conduct of all matters of interest and concern to the 

Commission. 

  

Objective 

 

The Commission endeavors to conduct all business according to law or custom to assure 

the preservation of present and future use of historic resources within the designated 

historic district. 

 

THE ROLE OF THE HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION 

 

The Preservation Commission is created to safeguard the historical heritage of 

Cumberland by preserving sites, structures, and districts which reflect elements of 

cultural, social, economic, political, archeological, or architectural history; to promote 

preservation and appreciation of historic sites, structures, and districts; to inform the 

citizens of the City, County, State, and Nation of the value of the historic fabric which 

exists in Cumberland.  To this end, the Commission shall be a resource to assist owners 

of historic properties or sites to maintain, appropriately renovate, and otherwise preserve 

the integrity of the historic properties. 

 

SECTION 1.  DEFINITIONS 

 

1.1 The word “Commission” means the Historic Preservation Commission of the City 

of Cumberland. 

 

SECTION 2.  MEMBERSHIPS, OFFICERS, AND COMMITTEES 

 

2.1 The membership shall consist of seven members to be appointed by the Mayor 

and City Council and a councilmember who shall be a voting member.  Each of 

the appointed shall serve a term of three years and be eligible for reappointment. 

Commissioners serve on the HPC without compensation, in a volunteer status.  

Membership requirements are set forth in section 25-299 of the City Code. 

 

2.2 The Commission shall annually elect a Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson, and 

Secretary and the officers shall be eligible for reelection. 

 

 

 



Revised 9/6/198/28/20 2 

2.3 Any vacancies in the Commission shall be filled within the time frame provided 

for in the City’s Historic Area Regulations, presently sixty days.  A member 

whose term has expired shall serve until the Mayor and City Council appoints a 

successor. 

 

2.4 Each member shall possess a demonstrated special interest, specific knowledge, 

or professional or academic training in such fields as history, architecture, 

architectural history, planning, archaeology, anthropology, curation, conservation, 

landscape architecture, historic preservation, urban design, or related disciplines. 

At least two members of the Commission shall possess professional or academic 

training in one or more of the above-listed fields in accordance with the minimum 

professional requirements of the United States Department of the Interior for 

certifying local governments under 36 C.F.R. Part 61. 

 

2.5 The Chairperson, or in his/her absence, the Vice-Chairperson, shall preside at all 

meetings or hearings of the Commission.  In the absence of the Chairperson and 

Vice-Chairperson, the Commission may elect a temporary Chairperson to preside 

over the particular meeting.  The presiding officer shall decide on all points of 

order and procedure, subject to these rules, unless otherwise directed by a 

majority of the Commission members present. 

  

2.52.6 Digital Signatures of each officer will be obtained annually after each election in 

order to utilize these signatures solely related to the issuance of Certificates of 

Appropriateness that are approved, approved with conditions, or denied by the 

Commission during the review process.  These signatures shall not be used for 

any other purposes in the conduct of business by the Commission. 

 

2.6      Special committees may be appointed for special purposes or study. 

  

SECTION 3.  MEETINGS 

 

3.1 Regular meetings shall be held on the second Wednesday of each month at 4:00 

p.m. in City Hall in the second floor Council Chambers.  However, meetings may 

be held at such other sites as the Commission may determine to be in its best 

interest.  This includes meetings using virtual online platforms that also provide 

the ability for members of the public to join, view, and/.or participate to the same 

extent in the same manner, or as close to the same manner is practicable,  as is 

provided in a “live” setting. Adjustments to the regular meeting schedule may be 

arranged in the beginning of each year by the Commissioners.  Staff shall give 

Commissioners ample notice of any changes in the meeting schedules. 

 

3.2 Special meetings may be called by the Chairperson, or in his/her absence, the 

Vice-Chairperson.  Ample notice of such meetings shall be given to each member 

by mail or telephone. 

 

Formatted: List Paragraph,  No bullets or numbering



Revised 9/6/198/28/20 3 

3.3 Notice of meetings shall be sent to the Cumberland Times-News and all media 

outlets specified by the City of Cumberland, on the City’s website, its Facebook 

page and such other means as are utilized by the Mayor and City Council in 

giving notice of its meetings.  including publication on the City of Cumberland’s 

social media platforms, such as Facebook  as public notification and by email to 

all media contacts specified by the City of Cumberland.  Notice shall also be 

posted on a bulletin board within the Department of Community Development 

and on the City of Cumberland website. When meetings are to be held in a virtual 

setting, the notice will include information about how the meeting can be 

accessed electronically or telephonically as well as how comments regarding 

items on the agenda, as well as general public comment, can be provided 

presentedto the Historic Preservation Commission.  

 

3.4 Attendance – It shall be the duty of each member to attend all meetings.  Should 

any member be absent from three (3) regular meetings during the year, without 

acceptable justification to the Commission, the Commission shall recommend that 

the member’s resignation be requested unless determined by vote of a majority of 

Commission members that there is a sufficient excuse for non-attendance.  It shall 

be the responsibility of each member who cannot attend a meeting to so notify the 

staff. 

 

3.5 All Commission hearings shall be public meetings.  All persons with requests to 

the Commission are required to appear and be heard by the Commissioners before 

the Commission reaches a decision on any matter.  The voting on such decisions 

shall be held during a public meeting and the Commission shall keep open records 

of its resolutions, proceedings, and actions which shall be available for public 

inspection during business hours or by electronic access on the City of 

Cumberland’s website.  Nothing contained herein shall be construed to prevent 

the Commission from holding executive sessions from which the public may be 

excluded, provided the exclusion of the public is allowed under the Maryland 

Open Meetings Act, but no ordinance, resolution, regulation, or other matter shall 

be finally acted upon at such an executive session.   

 

3.6  The Commission shall be responsible for  keeping an accurate and true record of 

all proceedings at its meetings and public hearings.  However, it is expected that 

the City’s Department of Community Development shall assist the Commission in 

the performance of these duties.  The minutes shall be taken from recordings of 

the actual meetings and distributed to Commissioners to be placed on record and 

stored on file at the Department of Community Development. 

 

3.7 Any applicant or petitioner must appear on his/her behalf or be represented by an 

agent or attorney at said meeting.  In the absence of any personal appearance on 

behalf of the applicant or petitioner, the Commission will table the item.  The 

presiding officer retains the right to have persons removed from public  meetings  

if they unreasonably interfere with the orderly conduct of the business at hand. 

 



Revised 9/6/198/28/20 4 

3.8 Subject to the statutory 45-day limitation or agreement by the applicant, the 

Commission may postpone or continue any case due to lack of quorum, or for 

further study and information until the next regular meeting.  The Commission 

may require any additional material in the form of maps, charts, reports, material 

specifications, additional project specifications, and studies and such other 

relevant information, in order to reachto assist it in reaching a decision.  In 

addition, the Commissioners may postpone a decision and request a site visit. 

 

The Commission’s meetings shall be conducted in accordance with these Bylaws and 

Rules of Procedure.  Otherwise, Robert’s Rules of Order may serve as a guide for the 

conduct of said meetings, but compliance with its terms is not required.   

 

SECTION 4.  VOTING 

 

4.1 Five members shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, and action 

may be taken only upon a majority vote.  No decision shall be made in the 

absence of a quorum.  At the discretion of the Chairperson, a Commissioner may 

vote by telephone or other live means. 

 

4.2 The order of business shall be in accord with the agenda. 

 

4.3 If there is a tie vote among the Commissioners, the Chairperson or Presiding 

Officer may vote to break the tie.  If the Chairperson abstains, a tie vote by the 

Commissioners shall be interpreted as a defeat of the motion. 

 

4.4 No member shall vote on a matter in which he/she has personal involvement.  

Members are encouraged to request that Commission staff consult the City 

Solicitor as to the propriety of their voting on any matter which may involve a 

conflict of interest. 

 

4.5 Commissioners’ votes shall be recorded on each motion unless the vote is 

unanimous. 

  

4.5 The motion template set forth in the, shown in Attachment A attached to of this 

documentthese Bylaws and Rules of Procedure, shall be utilized as a template for 

the review of and decision on each application for a Certificate of 

Appropriateness review. 
4.6  

 

SECTION 5.  CONDUCT  AND DUTIES OF COMMISSION MEMBERS 

 

5.1 No Commissioner shall speak on behalf of the Commission unless authorized by 

the Commission.  In any public or private statement concerning Commission 

affairs, members will carefully indicate whether they are speaking for the 

Commission or for themselves. 

 

Formatted: List Paragraph,  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Normal, Outline numbered + Level: 2 +
Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left +
Aligned at:  0" + Tab after:  0.5" + Indent at:  0.5"



Revised 9/6/198/28/20 5 

5.2 Conduct at meetings – Members shall conduct themselves at Commission 

meetings in a fair, understanding manner.  They shall seek to be considerate of all 

individuals, attitudes, and differences of opinion involved in official Commission 

business. 

 

5.3 Each member of the Commission will familiarize himself or herself with the 

applications under consideration. 

 

5.4 The review process carried out by the HPC requires judgment of each application 

based upon architectural guidelines, historical, archival, and archaeological 

information as well as technical and consultant assistance. 

 

5.5 As necessary, the Chair may assign commissioners to special duties that relate to 

HPC business, on a pro-tem basis. 

 

SECTION 6.  PROCEDURE IN BRINGING MATTERS BEFORE THE COMMISSION 

 

6.1 Once the historic area work permit application is determined by the staff to be 

complete, the application will be scheduled for a decision at the Commission’s 

next regularly scheduled meeting. Complete applications, as determined by the 

Commission staff, must be submitted at least seven (7) days prior to a regularly 

scheduled Commission meeting in order to be included on the monthly agenda 

and receive a decision during that month’s meeting. 

 

6.2 In specific cases, where the proposed work involves exact replacement “in kind,” 

such as the replacement of gutters or downspouts, the staff of the Department of 

Community Development , may determine that an application meets all 

requirements of the preservation ordinance. Staff may also act on cases that 

involve the need for emergency removal of a hazardous or diseased tree within 

the public right of way, the need for which is to be determined by the City of 

Cumberland’s Natural Resources Specialist.  In such cases, a permit may be 

issued at the administrative level which does not require the review of the Historic 

Preservation Commission. Staff will provide a report of all cases reviewed 

administratively at each monthly meeting. 

 

6.3 Major rehabilitation, new construction and demolition, and any matters where an 

applicant does not agree with staff decisions shall be heard by the Commission at 

a public meeting. 

 

6.4 When historical, archeological, or architecturally significant sites, structures and 

districts that exemplify the cultural, social, economic, political, or architectural 

history of the city, state, or nation are identified by a member of the Commission, 

its staff, a property owner, neighborhood group, or by an individual, the Historic 

Preservation Commission may, after making full and proper study, recommend 

designation for such landmarks, sites, structures, or districts. The resources used 

for designation will be a completed Local Survey Form, Maryland Inventory of 



Revised 9/6/198/28/20 6 

Historic Properties documentation, National Register of Historic Properties 

Nomination Forms, or equivalent. 

 

6.5 Decisions regarding the matters set forth in the preceding section may only be 

made at an open meeting.  The Commission’s recommendations shall be 

submitted to the Mayor and City Council.  It is understood that the Mayor and 

City Council may accept, accept with modification(s), or reject the Commission’s 

recommendations. 

 

6.6 Agendas for the Commission’s meetings shall be prepared by its staff in advance 

of the meetings, as required by the Maryland Open Meetings Act. Members of the 

Commission who wish to add to meeting agendas must notify the Chairperson of 

the proposed addition(s) prior to the meeting.  Unscheduled items not requiring 

public notice may be added to the agenda during the meeting upon the unanimous 

approval of the members present.  Agenda items that have been acted upon shall 

not be reconsidered unless new substantive information is presented. 

 

6.7 In an effort to expedite routine items before the Commission, the Commission 

hereby establishes a "Consent Agenda" procedure as follows:  

 

(a) (a) Business items shall be eligible for inclusion on the Consent Agenda 

upon the recommendations of the Commission’s staff or upon the 

recommendation of a Commission member.  

 

(b)  All items thus eligible shall be placed on the Consent Agenda by motion 

of any member of the Commission which is duly seconded. 

 

(b) (c) The Commission shall then take public comment on the Consent 

Agenda in order to ascertain whether members of the public or 

Commission have any comments, questions, or opposition to the granting 

of any item(s) on the Consent Agenda.  Any such item(s) shall be removed 

from the Consent Agenda and heard in regular order.  

 

(c) (d) The Commission shall then vote upon any item(s) which remain on the 

Consent Agenda upon any duly seconded motion calling for such a vote.   

 

(e)  If amendments or conditions are proposed on Consent Agenda items, 

applicants must agree to amendments or conditions to receive Consent 

Agenda approval. 

 

6.8 Any person aggrieved by any decision of the Commission to approve, deny or 

delay an application for a permit may appeal that decision by filing a petition for 

judicial review with  the Circuit Court for Allegany County, Maryland within 

thirty days of the date the decision is made. 

 

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: a, b,
c, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.5" +
Indent at:  1"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", Hanging:  0.5"

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: a, b,
c, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.5" +
Indent at:  1"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1"

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: a, b,
c, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.5" +
Indent at:  1"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", Hanging:  0.5"



Revised 9/6/198/28/20 7 

6.9 All requests requiring action by the Commission must be received by the 

Department of Community Development no later than one week prior to the next 

regularly scheduled meeting.   

 

 

 

 
 

SECTION 7.  AMENDMENTS 

 

7.1 Amendments to these Bylaws and Rules of Procedure may be introduced at any 

meeting of the Commission and voted upon at any subsequent regular meeting.  

Majority approval is required for the passage of amendments.   

 



Revised 9/6/198/28/20 8 

 

 

Motion Writing Guide:  

 

Commission Members state: I have studied the application and all other relevant 

documents and presentations related to this case, and I am familiar with the 

property in question. I find that:  

 

 

• The property individually contributes/ does not contribute to the period of 

significance and historic context of the Canal Place Preservation District as 

detailed in Chapter 3 of the Preservation District Design and Preservation 

Guidelines for Cumberland, Maryland  

 

• The proposed changes are/are not consistent with guidelines and criteria 

found in Chapter 5 of the Canal Place Preservation District because:  (Re: 

4.1.J – 4.1.L) list facts as applied including the Secretary of Interior’s Standards 

to support consistency/lack of consistency cite applicable Guideline numbers 

(usually referenced on the Presentation of Information by HPC staff) 

 

 

 

Based on these findings, I move to approve/approve with conditions Certificate of 

Appropriateness number/name:  

 or 

Based on these findings, I move to deny Certificate of Appropriateness number:  

 

Summarize project listing all required items requested as submitted or as amended in 

plans and correspondence with date. I authorize the use of the digital signatures on file 

for the Chairperson and Secretary of the HPC with the Department of Community 

Development to be utilized to provide the determination documents to the applicant(s):  

 

Second: 

Discussion: 

Vote: 

 

 

 

Attachment A 


	Top
	1.	August 12, 2020 Minutes Approval
	HPC Completed Minutes 08-12-20

	2.	3 Pershing Street Request to Change/Amend COA842
	3PershingSt2ndChangeAmendCOA842

	3.	23 Washington Street – Request to Change/Amend COA20-000003
	23WashStChangeCOA20-000003

	4.	27 North Centre Street - COA20-000004
	27NCentreStCOA20-000004
	27NCentreStPresentationofInformation

	5.	107 Baltimore Street Part 1 Historic District Tax Incentive Review
	107 BaltimoreSt COA20-1
	Proposed Front Elevation- HPC   submission
	107 Balt part 1  appPageHistoricPrestaxProgramCityofCumberland
	A-011 CODE DATA
	A-100 FLOOR PLANS
	A-010 CODE PLAN
	G-002 GEN NOTES SHT
	A-200 ELEVATIONS &amp; ROOF PLAN
	SUMMARIZED DESCRIPTION OF THE  PROJECT AT 107 BALTIMORE ST
	G-001 COVER SHT
	Proposed Rear Elevation- HPC   submission
	107 BaltimoreStCOA20-000001

	6.	Staff/Chairperson Updates
	7.	Review of  Proposed Revisions to the Rules of Procedure
	HPC Rules of Procedure 2020

	8.	Administrative Approvals Report
	Bottom

